
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

      BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

June 6, 2024 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for May 16, 2024

B. Receive and Ratify the Check Warrant List

C. Approve Clark attending the CASA Annual Conference July 31-Aug 2 in Monterey

D. Approve Murray attending The Cities Leading the Way on Nature-Based Solutions Webinar May 23

E. Approve Murray attending the CARB Next Stop to Zero Educational Webinar May 29

F. Approve Robards attending the CASA Annual Conference July 31-Aug 2 in Monterey

G. Approve Robards attending the 2024 California WateReuse Conference Sept 15-17 in Garden
Grove 

H. Approve Resolution 2024-2329 Adopting the Pay Scales Effective July 1, 2024 

I. Approve Resolution 2024-2330 Continuing the Low Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through I. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through I. 

4:05 PM 

4:10 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:00 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


June 6, 2024 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

 

 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. District Correspondence – written 

2. Solar Project Update – verbal 

 

4. 2024 SUMMER NEWSLETTER 

Board to review the final 2024 Summer Newsletter. 

 

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

1. CLARK  
a. NBWA Board Committee,  Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,  

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee, Future Sense Ad Hoc Committee,  
CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports  

 
 

2. MURRAY 
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,  

 Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,  
 Other Reports 

 
 

3. NITZBERG  
 
 

4. ROBARDS 
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA, Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE, 

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
 Future Sense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 
 

5. YEZMAN 
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE, 

                          Marin Special Districts, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  
              Other Reports 
 

6. BOARD REQUESTS: 
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

 

 

 

 

5:25 PM 
 
 
 
 

4:20 PM 
 

5:10 PM 

 4:50 PM 
 

2



June 6, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

8. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: JUNE 20 AND JULY 18, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before  June 3, 2024 4:00 pm I posted the Agenda for the Board 
Meeting of said Board to be held  on  June 6, 2024, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley Road, 
Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: May 30, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

5:30 PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

5:40  PM 

3



 

 
 

 

6/06/2024 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\06062024\PayScale\ASR Pay Scale Rate Changes Resolution No 2024-2329.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  

 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: June 6, 2024 

Re: Resolution Approving Pay Scales for Represented Classifications Effective July 1, 
2024, Pursuant to the California code of Regulation, Subchapter 1, Employees’ 
Retirement System Regulations Section 570.5. 

Item Type:   Consent X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff requests that the Board approve the attached Salary Pay Schedule and associated 
Resolution 2024-2329. 
 
BACKGROUND 
As a result of a three-year successor Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) agreement 
between Operating Engineers Local 3 and the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District the 
represented salary schedules for employee classifications was modified effective July 1, 2023. 
The MOU provides for a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (“COLA”) pay increase of 3% as of July 1, 
2024.  
 
Management and unrepresented employee employment agreements include the negotiated 3% 
COLA pay increase effective July 1, 2024. 
 
The attached Salary Pay Schedule as of July 1, 2024 adds the 3% COLA across all represented, 
unrepresented, and management classifications. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
The Board adopted the previous Salary Pay Schedule on March 7, 2024. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The fiscal year 2024-2025 budget provides funding for the COLA increases. 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  

Item Number_______2H_______ 

GM Review   ________CP______ 

 

29

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


   

Resolution 2024-2329  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2329 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PAY SCALES EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2024 
PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS, SUBCHAPTER 1, 

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM REGULATIONS SECTION 570.5 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) adopted a Salary Pay Schedule 

for all employees on March 7, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the District approved a three-year successor Memorandum of Understanding with 

Operating Engineers Local 3 (“OE3”) on September 7, 2023 which includes a General Wage 

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (“COLA”) of 3% effective July 1, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the management and unrepresented employee group agreed to incorporate the 

OE3 negotiated COLA into their employment agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has contracted with CalPERS to provide 

certain retirement benefits to its employees; and  

WHEREAS, the governance of retirement benefits provided to public employees in the state of 

California is governed by California Government Code Title 2, Division 5, Part 3 Public 

Employees’ Retirement System; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Administration of the Public Employees’ Retirement System has 

promulgated regulations to implement requirements of the governing law; and 

WHEREAS, the California Code of Regulations, Subchapter 1, Employees’ Retirement System 

Regulations section 570.5 (2 CCR § 570.5) states that  

“(a) For purposes of determining the amount of “compensation earnable” pursuant to 

Government Code Sections 20630, 20636, and 20636.1, payrate shall be limited to the 

amount listed on a pay schedule that meets all of the following requirements: 

(1) Has been duly approved and adopted by the employer's governing body in 

accordance with requirements of applicable public meeting laws;  

(2) Identifies the position title for every employee position;  

(3) Shows the payrate for each identified position, which may be stated as a 

single amount or as multiple amounts within a range;  

(4) Indicates the time base, including, but not limited to, whether the time base is 

hourly, daily, bi-weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, or annually;  

30



   

Resolution 2024-2329  Page 2 of 2 

(5) Is posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and 

available for public review from the employer during normal business hours or 

posted on the employer's internet website;  

(6) Indicates an effective date and date of any revisions;  

(7) Is retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less 

than five years; and  

(8) Does not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the payrate”. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District does hereby adopt the Salary Pay Schedule Effective July 1, 2024, which is attached as 

Exhibit A and is included by reference, in accordance with the requirements of the California 

Code of Regulations, Subchapter 1, Employees’ Retirement System Regulations section 570.5 

(2 CCR § 570.5). 

*     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     * 

I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly 

passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin 

County, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on June 6, 2024, by the following vote of 

the members thereof: 

 AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 

 NOES, Members: 

 ABSENT, Members: 

 ABSTAIN, Members: 

   

         ________________________________ 

           Teresa L. Lerch, Board Secretary 

           Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 

 

APPROVED: 

           (seal) 

___________________________________ 

Craig K. Murray, Board President 

31



         
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District EXHIBIT A

Salary Pay Schedule as of July 1, 2024

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6

Administrative Assistant 6,551            6,878            7,222            7,583            7,962            8,360           

Administrative/Financial Specialist 9,030            9,481            9,956            10,453          10,976          11,525         

Administrative Services Manager 15,934          16,731          17,568          18,446          19,368          20,337         

Assistant Engineer 9,967            10,466          10,989          11,539          12,115          12,721         

Associate Engineer 12,144          12,752          13,389          14,059          14,761          15,500         

Civil Engineering Technician  7,981            8,380            8,799            9,239            9,701            10,186         

Collection System/Maintenance/Safety Manager 15,546          16,323          17,139          17,996          18,896          19,841         

Collection System Operator (1) 6,235            6,547            6,874            7,218            7,579            7,957           

Collection System Operator I  (1) 6,551            6,878            7,222            7,583            7,962            8,360           

Collection System Operator II 6,882            7,226            7,588            7,967            8,365            8,784           

Collection System Operator III 7,411            7,782            8,171            8,580            9,009            9,459           

Collection System Operator Lead 7,981            8,380            8,799            9,239            9,701            10,186         

CMMS Technician 7,981            8,380            8,799            9,239            9,701            10,186         

District Engineer 16,333          17,149          18,007          18,907          19,853          20,845         

Executive Assistant / Board Secretary 13,496          14,171          14,879          15,623          16,405          17,225         

Electrical Instrumentation Technician 9,487            9,961            10,460          10,983          11,532          12,108         

Environmental Services Supervisor 11,559          12,137          12,744          13,381          14,050          14,753         

Grant Management and Procurement Specialist 9,030            9,481            9,956            10,453          10,976          11,525         

Laboratory Analyst‐in‐Training  (1) 7,597            7,976            8,375            8,794            9,234            9,695           

Laboratory Analyst I    (1) 7,981            8,380            8,799            9,239            9,701            10,186         

Laboratory Analyst II 8,810            9,250            9,713            10,198          10,708          11,244         

Laboratory Analyst III 10,217          10,727          11,264          11,827          12,418          13,039         

Maintenance Supervisor 11,559          12,137          12,744          13,381          14,050          14,753         

Plant Manager 15,934          16,731          17,568          18,446          19,368          20,337         

Plant Operator‐in‐Training (1) 6,882            7,226            7,588            7,967            8,365            8,784           

Plant Operator I   (1) 7,231            7,592            7,972            8,370            8,789            9,228           

Plant Operator II 7,981            8,380            8,799            9,239            9,701            10,186         

Plant Operator III 8,810            9,250            9,713            10,198          10,708          11,244         

Plant Operator Lead 9,487            9,961            10,460          10,983          11,532          12,108         

Plant Operations Supervisor 11,559          12,137          12,744          13,381          14,050          14,753         

Skilled Maintenance Worker I   (1) 6,882            7,226            7,588            7,967            8,365            8,784           

Skilled Maintenance Worker II 7,981            8,380            8,799            9,239            9,701            10,186         

General Manager (2)

  How to Use this Pay Scale:  Steps 1 through 6 are the regular base wage levels for all positions.
  Longevity Pay is available to eligible employees hired prior to 9/7/2023. Employees hired after 9/7/2023 are not eligible for longevity pay.
  Longevity Pay equal to 5% of employee's base wage rate is given beginning on the 7th year of employment for eligible employees. 
  Additional Longevity Pay of 3%  is given beginning on the 11th year of employment for eligible employees.
  Additional Longevity Pay equal to 2% is given beginning on the 16th year of employment for management hired prior to 7/1/2016.
   (1) Employees in entry level classifications are not eligible for longevity pay.  
   (2) The General Manager position is an executive contract position.

Resolution No. 2024‐2329

Revised / Adopted _________

Full Time Positions

26,497

Monthly Salary

Q:\PERSONNEL\PAYSCALES\Pay Schedule  - Range and Steps July 1 2024 Res 2024-2329 Exhibit A32



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\06062024\LISRAP\ASR Low Income Rate Assistance Resolution 2024-2025.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: June 6, 2024 

Re: Resolution 2024-2330 Continuing the Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance 
Program for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information     Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve Resolution No. 2024-2330 continuing the Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program 
(“LISRAP” or “Program”) to qualified single-family residential ratepayer households, including 
manufactured homes and mobile homeowners, in fiscal year 2024-2025 and allocate $25,000 in 
Ad Valorem Property Taxes for use towards the Program, authorizing staff to include funding in 
the budget. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In early 2022, the Board expressed interest in providing rate relief to low-income residents of the 
District. Research was undertaken and it was determined that the District has the authority to 
implement a low-income rate assistance program as long as the District does not use Sewer 
Service Charge (SSC) rate revenue, which is subject to the substantive limitations under Article 
XIII D, Section 6 (Proposition 218) proportionality requirements under the California Constitution. 
Non-SSC revenue sources, such as ad valorem property tax revenues, were identified which can 
be used to fund the program. The Board approved LISRAP and allocated $50,000 for use in the 
Program’s first fiscal year 2022-2023. The Program requires that any unused funds at the end of 
the fiscal year be released back to the general fund. 
 
The Program was established to benefit single-family residential ratepayers who own their home. 
The District classifies manufactured homes or mobile homes as single-family residential property 
subject to the same SSC as a single-family residential property. Although they may generally 
have the same meaning, for California property taxation purposes, the term mobile home is now 
obsolete and was changed to manufactured home in Revenue and Taxation Code section 5801 in 
January 1992. 
 
As part of the LISRAP application, homeowners in our District are required to provide a copy of 
their most recent Marin County property tax bill showing they were billed for the SSC in that year. 
It is the owners of the mobile home parks that pay the SSC for all manufactured or mobile homes 
on their property. Manufactured and mobile homeowners pay a monthly rental invoice to the 
mobile home park which includes other services such as sewer service. It is not the intent of the 
program to provide rate reduction relief to a private corporation.  
 
  

Item Number_______2I_______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

33

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\06062024\LISRAP\ASR Low Income Rate Assistance Resolution 2024-2025.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
District staff has identified a simple solution to allow low-income manufactured or mobile 
homeowners the opportunity to participate in LISRAP. For manufactured homes originally 
purchased new on or after July 1, 1980, they were automatically subject to local property taxes 
and are billed separately by the county assessor as property. If the manufactured home was 
purchased prior to the above date, homeowners are charged an In-Lieu License Fee (annual 
vehicle license fee) by the State of California Housing & Community Development. Allowing the 
submittal of the annual local property tax statement or the annual vehicle license fee statement 
will show proof of ownership. Providing a copy of the billing statement from the mobile home park 
showing SSC assessed will show proof they are receiving service from the District. 
 
Adoption of the attached resolution will continue the Program past June 30, 2024 and into fiscal 
year 2024-2025. 
 
Report on LISRAP for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
The Program was promoted in the Winter 2024 Heron newsletter which was successful in bringing 
attention to the Program. 
 
To date, the Program has been utilized by forty-seven homeowners for a total cost of $5,828 in 
fiscal year 2023-2024. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On May 4, 2023, the District Board of Directors expanded and continued the Low-Income Sewer 
Rate Assistance Program (“LISRAP”) by Resolution No. 2023-2303, establishing a 10% sewer 
rate reduction to benefit single-family residential ratepayer households who participate in the 
PG&E California Alternate Rates for Energy (CARE) Program. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost to implement the Program is dependent upon the number of PG&E CARE customers 
that utilize the Program. There are 1,835 CARE customers in the District comprised of both 
renters and homeowners. Based on the inquiries received, it is anticipated that less than 10% of 
the eligible PG&E CARE customers are homeowners who would qualify for LISRAP. 
 
Staff believes that the maximum annual Program cost for next year will not exceed $25,000. 
 
Attachment: 

1. Resolution No. 2024-2330  
 

 

34



Resolution No. 2024-2330  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2330 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
CONTINUING THE LOW-INCOME SEWER RATE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

IN FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
WITHIN THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is authorized by the 

Sanitary District Act of 1923 (Health & Safety Code §6400 et seq.) to provide public 
services and facilities related to the acquisition, construction, replacement, maintenance 
and operation of wastewater collection facilities within the District’s service area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District is empowered to prescribe, revise and collect fees, rates 
and charges related to said wastewater collection facilities pursuant to Health & Safety 
Code §6520.5; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District imposes Sewer Service Charges (“SSC”) in accordance 

with Government Code §66013; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 21, 2022, the District Board of Directors established a Low-

Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program (“LISRAP or Program”) by Resolution No. 
2022-2250 to benefit single-family residential ratepayer households; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 4, 2023, the District Board of Directors expanded the 

Program by Resolution No. 2023-2303 to benefit manufactured home or mobile home 
owner ratepayer households; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Program is funded by non-SSC rate revenue such as Ad 

Valorem Property Taxes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Title 3 Chapter 1, Article 1(f) of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District Sewer Service Charge Ordinance classifies manufactured homes or mobile 
homes as single-family residential property subject to the same Sewer Service Charge 
as a single-family residential property; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board wishes to continue the Program in fiscal year 2024-2025. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, hereby continues the Low-Income Sewer Rate 
Assistance Program (“LISRAP”) for fiscal year (“FY”) 2024-2025, providing a ten 
percent (10%) Sewer Service Charge rate discount to eligible ratepayer households, 
demonstrated by being enrolled in the PG&E CARE Program (California Alternate 
Rates for Energy Program) and for which the rate payer household must also include 
a customer of the District who pays the District Sewer Service Charges on their 
property tax bill or as billed by their mobile home park. 

35



Resolution No. 2024-2330  Page 2 of 2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $25,000 of Ad Valorem Property Tax 
revenue received from Marin County in FY 2024-2025 be allocated to fund the 
program, subject to Final Budget approval, with any unused funds at the end of the 
fiscal year being released to the general fund. Continuation of the program and any 
adjustment to the program or funding allocation will be reviewed annually as part of 
the budget process. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that implementation of the LISRAP, including 

updating the application process and oversight of the program to include manufactured 
homes or mobile homes, is hereby delegated to the General Manager or designee. 

 
 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 6th day of June, 2024, 
by the following vote of the members thereof: 
 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 
NOES, Members: 
ABSTAIN, Members: 
ABSENT, Members: 
  

____________________________________ 

         Teresa L. Lerch, Board Secretary 
       
Approved: 
 
           (seal) 
_____________________________________ 
Craig K. Murray, Board President  
 

 

36



37



38



39



40



 

 
 

 

6/06/2024 
 

SOLAR PROJECT UPDATE 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM  3.2 

41



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\06062024\Newsletter\ASR Summer 2024 Newsletter.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: June 6, 2024 

Re: Summer 2024 Heron Newsletter 

Item Type:   Consent   Action      X  Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the publication of the Summer 2024 Heron Newsletter. 

BACKGROUND 
The District produces a newsletter approximately every six (6) months to update customers 
regarding subjects of interest about the District. Each newsletter typically has one main topic and 
three to four smaller articles. A primary theme throughout the newsletter is the critical need to 
continue investing in capital improvements to maintain and protect the District’s infrastructure to 
meet the District’s goals of providing reliable service while protecting the environment. 
 
The target audience of the newsletter are the residents and businesses within the boundaries of 
the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. The method of delivery will be by US Postal Service with 
a digital copy of the newsletter and linked articles posted on our website. 
 
The newsletter will be mailed in late June. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On April 4, 2024, the Board discussed potential newsletter topics and gave staff direction to 
develop the newsletter. The following topics were chosen: 

• Award of architectural design contract for Lab / Board / Education Center building 

• Careers in the Wastewater Industry  

• Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District: 70 years of Service to Marin Residents 

• Newest Board Member 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The newsletter is budgeted in the 2023-24 Budget as part of the District’s public outreach. 

Item Number_________4_____ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

42

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


The Heron
L a s  G a l l i n a s  V a l l e y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t

Summer 2024

Recognizing 70 Years of Service to 
Marin County Residents
Did you know that the Las 
Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is 
actually part of the baby boomer 
generation? The District was “born” 
nearly 70 years ago in 1954, as a 
wastewater treatment plant built to 
address health problems associated 
with failing septic tanks in the Santa 
Venetia area. 

So much has changed since then! 
Today, the District has extended 
its service area and improved 
and expanded its facilities, and 
continues to provide first-rate 
wastewater treatment services 
for its 30,000-plus customers. But 
since 1954 it has also evolved and 
changed with the times in other 
ways, now delivering a wider range 
of services to protect public health 
and the environment, engaging 
with the community, and ensuring 
compliance with stringent, ever-
changing regulations.

Far beyond its start as a single-

purpose wastewater treatment 
facility, the District is now recognized 
as a significant, multi-purpose 
regional environmental steward, 
with a commitment to sustainability 
and efficiency.

By utilizing its own solar power 
array to generate electricity, 
the District avoids the need to 
run standard power plants using 
fossil fuels, increasing its energy 
independence and avoiding 
additional greenhouse gas pollution. 

Design 
Underway for 
Multipurpose
Facility 
Building will Function as 
Laboratory, Board Room, and 
Public Education Building

The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District has taken a significant 
step forward in enhancing its 
environmental and community 
services by awarding an 
architectural design contract to 
Noll & Tam Architects for a new 
Multipurpose Laboratory Building. 

When completed, this facility 
will house not only the District’s 
laboratory — a state-of-the-art 
science center which is key to 
compliance with rigorous state and 
federal water quality regulations 
— but also the District Board of 
Directors’ meeting room and space 
for community engagement and 
education. 

The laboratory will be located 
on the building’s first floor. On 
the second floor, the education 
center and boardroom will serve 
as a location for Board meetings, 
as well as public outreach, hands-
on learning, and community 
meetings. This space is designed to 
foster interaction and education 
about wastewater treatment, 
recycling, and conservation 
efforts, highlighting the District’s 
role in these critical environmental 
initiatives. 

Continued on page 4...

Continued on page 2...

What else was going on in 1954, the year the District was born?

• Actor Denzel Washington, TV show host Oprah Winfrey, comedian 
Jerry Seinfeld, and actor Jackie Chan were born.

• Minimum wage was 75¢ an hour, bread was 12¢ a loaf, a gallon of 
gas was 21¢, a movie ticket was 56¢, the average house cost was 
$10,250, and the average car was $1,700.

• Some of the popular movies were 20,000 Leagues Under the Sea, On 
the Waterfront, and A Star is Born. From Here to Eternity won best film 
at the Academy Awards.

• The Piña Colada was invented in Cuba.
• Prime time television shows included I Love Lucy, The Jackie Gleason 

Show, Dragnet, Lassie, and You Bet Your Life.
• The first Burger King opened in Miami, FL.
• The New York Giants won the World Series.

70
Years!

A
tt

rib
u

tio
n

: J
o

n
 ’

Sh
a

ka
ta

G
a

N
a

i’ 
D

a
vi

s

43



2

The District also produces biogas 
(renewable natural gas) generated 
through the anaerobic digestion 
process at the wastewater 
treatment plant, and uses it to 
generate clean power. Less use of 
standard power grid energy and 
commercial fuel means less use of 
non-renewable fossil fuels — that’s 
a great thing for the environment, 
and for all of us.

With the 2023 completion of 
the Secondary Treatment Plant 
Upgrade and Recycled Water 
Expansion Project, the District’s 
wastewater treatment capacity 
has more than doubled (to 18 
million gallons per day), helping 
protect the environment by 
reducing the potential for overflows 
during storm events. Its production 
capacity of recycled water for non-
potable uses has more than tripled 
(to five million gallons per day), 
which is distributed to Marin Water 
and North Marin Water District for 
use in irrigation, car washes, cooling 
towers, toilet flushing, and other 
non-potable needs that might 
otherwise require use of drinking 
water.

A reclamation area is part of the 
District’s operation, with a 20-acre 
wildlife marsh, 40 acres of storage 
ponds, a 10-acre saltwater marsh, 
20 acres of irrigated landscaping, 
and 200 acres of irrigated pasture. 
The site and its public trails, 
including a portion of the San 

Francisco Bay Trail, is a favorite 
destination for bird watchers, 
walkers, and nature lovers, and 
provides habitat for a variety of 
wildlife. 

The District re-uses biosolids — a 
byproduct of the wastewater 
treatment process — spreading 
them onto a dedicated nine-acre 
area on District property where 
they become part of the soil. While 
this is an approved method of 
disposing of biosolids, the District’s 
goal is to treat them as a resource, 
not as a disposal issue, and is 
exploring ways to beneficially use 
the nutrient value of biosolids.  

To function most effectively and 
productively in the 21st century, 
it’s crucial to ensure collaboration 
and coordination among 
agencies on a local and regional 
basis — this is especially true in 
the sensitive Baylands areas. The 
District has developed partnerships 
and affiliations with a variety of 
agencies, all with the common 

“Recognizing 70 Years of Service” continued from page 1

Check out our new 
website and subscribe 

to email updates!
Our new website went live last 
year, and we’re excited for 
you to take a look. 

www.LGVSD.org

The site is filled with interesting 
information for you to discover, 
including more details about 
many of the topics mentioned 
in this article.

When you go to the website, 
be sure to sign up for the 
District’s email list. You can 
subscribe to receive timely 
news and updates, links to our 
newsletters, or agendas for our 
Board of Directors’ meetings. 
Here’s a direct link to subscribe 
to your selected District emails:

goal of serving the community 
in an environmentally sensitive, 
sustainable, and forward-thinking 
way: Marin Water, North Marin 
Water District, Marin Sanitary 
Service, North Bay Watershed 
Association, Marin/Sonoma 
Vector and Mosquito Control 
District, Zero Waste Marin, and 
North Bay Water Reuse Authority, 
among others. The District also 
has a valued association with 
the Marin County Local Agency 
Formation Commission, an 
agency that promotes and 
coordinates the efficient delivery 
of local government services and 
encourages the preservation of 
open space and agricultural lands. 

Be sure to visit the District’s website 
for more details about how the 
District has evolved from a single-
purpose wastewater treatment 
facility in 1954, to today’s multi-
purpose, forward-thinking entity. 
Learn more at 
LGVSD.org/70YearsProud

Recycled Water Distribution 
Pump Station

Reclamation Area

44



3

Join the Leading Edge of Public and 
Environmental Health: 
Wastewater Management

At its meeting of 
May 2, 2024, the 
Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District Board 
of Directors selected 
Barry Nitzberg to fill a 

vacant seat on the Board, following 
the resignation of a Board member 
earlier this year. Mr. Nitzberg was 
sworn in at a special Board meeting 
on May 6, and the appointment 
is effective until December 2024. 
This seat will be up for election in 
November 2024 to complete the 
remaining two years of the term (to 
December 2026). 

“I’m very grateful to have been 
selected to serve on the Board, 
and I look forward to offering my 
skills and expertise to help this 
organization advance its mission,” 
said Nitzberg. “As a Board member, 
I know that our policy decisions are 
crucial to ensure the District stays 
on track in providing excellent 
wastewater treatment services and 
high-quality recycled water, while 
keeping a focus on protecting the 
environment.” 

Nitzberg has been in the plumbing 
industry for many years, initially 
as a Journeyman Plumber with 
U.A. Local 38, then as a Licensed 
Plumbing Contractor in Marin 
County, followed by employment 
as Senior Territory Manager for 
plumbing products manufacturer 
Moen, Inc. He subsequently joined 
PACE Supply Corp., a wholesale 
supplier of plumbing, water works, 
wastewater, water treatment and 
hydronics. At PACE, an employee-
owned company, Nitzberg served 
as a member of the Board of 
Directors and, until his retirement 
in 2015, held the position of Senior 
Vice President of Sales, Marketing, 
and Organizational Development. 

Nitzberg holds a BA degree in 
Geography. He has been a resident 

The sustained, effective operation 
of wastewater management is 
critical to public health and to the 
protection of our environment. 
The essential role wastewater 
professionals play continues non-
stop regardless of the emergencies 
around us, whether fires, power 
outages, other disasters, or even a 
pandemic — and the many career 
opportunities for skilled wastewater 
treatment plant operators continue 
to grow. 

This is an exciting, expanding, 
and important field of work which 
is experiencing an industry-wide 
demand for skilled treatment plant 
technicians. These professionals 
perform a variety of operational, 
mechanical, and electrical tasks to 
ensure the wastewater treatment 
plant and associated facilities are 
operated and maintained at their 
peak performance levels. 

Throughout the industry, these 
are well-paid jobs, many of which 
require various levels of certification. 

Training is available through 
trade schools, local colleges, and 
universities — check out Solano 
Community College and Santa 
Rosa Junior College for their 
wastewater and instrumentation 
programs. 

As populations grow and 
environmental regulations continue 
to evolve and expand, more 
water- and wastewater-treatment 
services — including the production 
of recycled water — will be needed 
for the communities they protect. 
New treatment plants, along with 
expansion of existing plants, are 
anticipated to continue to create 
jobs for operators, management, 
and environmental STEM experts.  

The growing field of wastewater 
management has ample 
opportunities for advancement, 
personal growth, and job 
satisfaction, and most positions 
typically include very good benefits. 
It’s a career opportunity worth 
exploring!

Barry Nitzberg 
Appointed to LGVSD 
Board of Directors

Continued on page 4...

Dominican Students Visiting District Facility

45



101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA 94903
Phone (415) 472-1734  •  Fax (415) 499-7715
www.lgvsd.org

Board of Directors Board Meetings are
Megan Clark
Craig K. Murray 
Barry Nitzberg
Gary Robards 
Crystal J. Yezman

District Administration: Curtis Paxton, General Manager

Presorted
Standard

US Postage

PAID
San Rafael, CA
Permit No. 384

4

ECRWSS – Postal Customer
held at 4:00 PM on
the first and third 
Thursday of each month 
at the District offices.

The District received the following awards and certificates:
• Recycled Water Agency of the Year 2023 (Small Category) from the 

California WateReuse Association
• District Transparency Certificate of Excellence by the Special District 

Leadership Foundation for 2022-2025 in recognition of its outstanding 
efforts to promote transparency and good governance.

• Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 
2022 was received by Government Finance Officers Association.

Printed on recycled paper using soy-based inks.

The project’s parking lot will 
incorporate solar canopies 
and electric vehicle charging 
stations, reflecting the District’s 
commitment to renewable 
energy and sustainability. These 
features, along with the building’s 
design considerations for ADA 
compliance, energy efficiency, 
and resilience against sea level 
rise and storm surge, underline 
the project’s forward-thinking 
approach.

The award of this contract marks 
the beginning of a project 
poised to elevate the District’s 
wastewater treatment and 
recycling capabilities for its 30,000-
plus customers, and enhance its 
interaction and engagement with 
the community.

Initiated in July 2023, the contract’s 
competitive review process 
concluded with the selection 
of Noll & Tam Architects, a firm 
distinguished by its expertise in 
laboratory design. Vital to this 
firm’s selection is its alignment 
with the District’s values and 
vision. The contract encompasses 

a wide-ranging scope from 
conceptual design to construction 
administration and management, 
demonstrating the project’s 
ambition and scale.

With a construction budget of $10 
million, the Multipurpose Laboratory 
Building project is a significant 
investment in the District’s and 
Marin County’s future, reflecting 
a dedication to innovation, 
sustainability, and public service. 
The design phase is expected to 
span 13 months, with the project’s 
completion targeted for June 2026.

This initiative not only promises to 
enhance LGVSD’s operational 
capabilities but also sets a 
new standard for integrating 
community-focused environmental 
education and sustainable 
practices within public utilities. 
As this project unfolds, it provides 
enhanced laboratory services and 
represents a vital step toward a 
more informed, environmentally 
conscious, and engaged 
community in Marin County.

“Design Underway for Multipurpose Facility” continued from page 1

When done reading 
this newsletter, please 
put it in your blue 
recycling bin with other 
recyclable paper items.

of the District’s service area since 
2013 and is a member of the Santa 
Venetia Neighborhood Association. 
Long a concerned environmentalist, 
Nitzberg co-founded a chapter of 
the American Cetacean Society 
of Marin County, for which he 
coordinated presentations by 
national and international experts 
on the status of whale populations, 
and he personally conducted 
an informational program on the 
California Grey Whale and other 
marine mammals. 

The District’s Board of Directors 
sets policy and makes a variety of 
decisions governing the District’s 
operations of providing effective 
wastewater collection, treatment, 
and recycling services. The 
Board focuses on critical policy 
issues involving budgets and 
funding, operations/infrastructure, 
partnerships, and other vital matters 
which guide the overall success of 
the District. 

“Barry Nitzberg” continued from page 3

46



 

 
 

 

6/06/2024 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports 
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
 

NITZBERG 
 

  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA, 
Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis 
Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Development Ad Hoc 
Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: June 6, 2024             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

77



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\06062024\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

6/06/2024 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103


	Agenda 06062024
	1 Public Comment
	2A Minutes 05162024
	2B Check Register Warrant List
	2C Clark CASA Conference Request
	2D Murray May 23 Webinar Request
	2E Murray CARB Next Stop May 29 Webinar Request
	2F Robards CASA Conference Request
	2G Robards Calif WateReuse Conference Request
	2H Pay Scale Rate Changes Resolution No 2024-2329
	2I Low Income Rate Assistance Resolution 2024-2330
	3.1 District Correspondence
	3.2 Solar Project Update
	4 Summer 2024 Newsletter
	5 Board Member Reports
	5.2 Murray Other Reports
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles



